!/II///II////II//II//II/IIIIKII///II//I/}I//I//II mesoblast

22182 the adult stem cell company

15 March 2007

US Securities and Exchange Commission
Office of Intemational Corporate Finance
100 F Street, N.E.

WASHINGTON DC 20549

USA

Mailstop: Room 3628

BEST AVAILABLE COPY

Dear Sirs

Re: Submission by Mesoblast Limited under Rule 12g3-2(b) - SEC File Number 82-34929
We enclose copies of all documents lodged with the Australian Securities Commission on behalf of

Mesoblast Limited for filing with the US Securities & Exchange Commission.

| These lodgements date from 1 February 2007 to the present date 15 March 2007: E

Yours sincerely

\&\ Kevin Hollingsworth
Company Secretary

| PROCESSED

| 4 APR112007
/89 THOMSON

FINANCIAL 4 j

‘ Level 39, 55 Colling Street Malboume
Victoria 3000 AUSTRALIA

[}
t +61 3 9639 6036
1 +61 3 9639 6030

www.mesoblast.com

ABN &8 109 431 B70
ACN 109 431.870
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Appendix 4C

Quarterly report for efltities
admitted on the basis of commitlments

Rule 4.78
-e |
Appendix 4C |
Quarterly report !
for entities admitted
on the basis of commitments
Introdnced 317372000, Amendged V972001
Name of entity E
IMe-soblast Limited
ABN Quarter ended {*current quarter™)
58 109 431 870 31 December 2006
Consolidated statement of cash flows
)
Current guurter Year to date f
Cash flows related to operating activities $AT000 FAT000 J
i
1.1 Receipts from customers
Government grant roccived
R & D Tax Offsct
12 Paymentsfor  {a) stafl costs
(b) advertising and marketing
{c) research and development
{d) leased asscts
{e¢) other working capital
1.3  Dividends received i
14 Interest and other items of a similar nature 272 490
reccived
1.5 Interest and other costs of finance paid
1.6  Income taxes paid
1.7 Other (provide detsils if material) _
Commercialisation costs (2,197 (4_.6(}?)
General Administration {(8502) (1,366)
|
i
l
Net operating cash flows {2,727) (5,485)

+ See chupter 19 for defined terms.

30/9/2001

Appendix 4C Puge |



Appendix 4C
Quarterly report for entities
admitted on the basis of commitments

Appendix 4C Page 2

Current quarter Year to date i
3A°000 $A000 H
i
1.8 Net operating cash flows (carried forward) 2,727) (5,48!;)
Cash flows related to investing activities
1.9 Payment for acquisition of: | |
(8) businesses (item 5) | |
(b) cquity  investments  {sce
attached note 4) (1,000) 3 000)
(c} intellectoal property | () | (2_) I
(d) physical non carrent asscts | | (28) ]
(e} other non-current asscts | | | I
i
: | | |
1.10 Proceeds from disposal of: I | | ]
(o} businesses (item 5) | | F
(b) cquity investments I | ! |
{c} intellectual property | | l |
{d) physical non-current asseis | | i |
{€) othcr non-current asscts | | l |
111 Loans to other entitics | (1549) | 13|
.12 Loans repaid by other entities | | I |
113 Other (provide details if material) I | | I
|
Net investing cash flows {1,168} (3,..6'5
1.14 Total operating and investing cash flows (3,895) (8,74?)
Cash Mlows related to financing activities ‘
t.15  Proceeds from tssues of shares, options, cte. | 44 | 16,609 |
1.16  Procceds from sale of forfeited shares | | | |
.17 Proceeds from borrowings | | i
)
I.18  Rcpaymeni of borrowings | | |
119 Dividends paid | | |
120 Other (Government grant reccivable) | | i l
Net financing cash flows | 44 I 16,6121!9 I
t
Net increase (decrease) in cash held | (3,851) 7,BTI
1.2} Cash at beginning of quarter/year to date | 19,567 | 7,855 |
122 Exchange rafe adjustments to item 1.20 | | | |
'
1.23  Cash at end of guarter | 15,716 5,716 I
|
+ See chupter 19 for defined terms.
30/972001
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Appendix 4C

Quarterly report for entities

admitted on the basis of eommit:ments

Payments to directors of the entity and associates of the directors

Payments to related entities of the entity and associates of the related entities

|
i
Current quarter i
SA'000 :I
)
i.24 Aggregate amount of payments to the partics included in item 1.7 ]2?
i
1.25 Aggregaie amount of loans to the parties included in item 1.11 (154)
|
1.26 Explanation necessary for an understanding of the transactions

Silviu ftescu 38

Byron McAllister 10

Michael Spoaner 69

Donal O’ Dwyer 9
|

Non-cash financing and investing activities

|
2.1 Details of financing and investing transactions which have had a material cffect on consolidated

assets and liabilities _hut did not involve cash flows

N/A

|

22 Details of outlays made by other entitics to establish or increase their share in businesses in whiclll

the reporting entity has an interest

N/A

Financing facilities available N/A

Add notes as necessary for on understanding of the position. {(See AASB 1026 paragraph 12.2).

Amount available
5AT000

Amount used
SATC00

3.1 Loan Facilitics

32 Credit standby arrangemenits

+ See chipter 19 for defined terms.

3082000

Appendix 4C Page 3



Appendix 4C
Quarterly report for entities
admitted on the basis of commitments

Reconciliation of cash

Reconciliation of cash st the end of the quarter (as | Cuarrent quarter Previous guarter
shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows) to | $A’000 SAO00
the related jtems in the accounts is as follows.
I
4.} Cash on hand and at bank 152 2|46
42  Deposits at calt 745 2,1,] 0
43 Bank overdrafl |
o " |
44  Other - Term Deposits 14,819 17211
|
Total: cash at end of quarter (item 1.22) 15,716 I9,5I67
Acquisitions and disposals of business entities N/A
Acquisitions Disposals

{Item 1. 9aj) .

{item [.10(a)

5.1 Name of entity

52  Place of incorporation
or registration

5.3  Consideration for
acquisition or disposal

5.4  Total net assets

5.5  Nature of business

Compliance statement

1 This statement has been prepared under accounting policies which comply with ac:m}mting
standards as defined in the Corporations Act (excepl to the extent that information is not required
because of note 2) or other standards acceptable to ASX.

2. This statement does give a true and fair view of the matters disclosed.

{Company secretary)

Print name: Kevin Hollingsworth

w. Dater ....30 January 2007.......ccoevnens

+ Seo chupter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 4( Page 4

3072001




Appendlx 4C
Quarterly report for enmles
admitted on the basis of commitments

Notes I

1. The quarterly report provides a basis for informing the market how the entity’s activities have
been financed for the past quarter and the effect on its cash position. An entity wammg 10
disclose additional information is encouraged to do so, in a note or notes attached tu this
report. ) t

:

2 The definitions in, and provisions of, A4ASE 1026: Staiemers of Cash Flows apply tlo this

report except for the paragraphs of the Standard set out below,

. 6.2 - reconciliation of cash flows arising from operating activities to

operating profit or loss

. 92 - itemised disclosure relating to acquisitions !
. 9.4 - itemised disclosure relating to disposals |
. [2.1(a) - policy for classification of cash items |
. [2.3 - disclosure of restrictions on use of cash !
. [3.1 - comparative information |

b

[¥F)
¢

Accounting Standards. ASX will accept, for example, the use of Intemational Accountmg,
Standards for foreign entities. If the standards used do not address a topic, the Auetrallan
standard on that topic (if any) must be complied with.

4. Item 1.9 {6} - equity investment — A$3 million

The equity investment relates to the following:

(a)  Section (.4 (1) of the Supplementary Prospectus which reflects the agreement lhat on
completion of the Mesoblast offer and its ASX listing, Mesoblast would pay, AS2
million te Angioblast Systems Inc. as the first instalment to acquire 33.3 percent of
equity interest in Angioblast Systems Inc. Mesoblast would then continue to pay
quarterly instalments of ASl million 10 Angioblast Systems Inc. up until quarter
ending 31 December 2006, All these payments have now been paid.

(k) On 23 November 2006 the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting
considered and passed the following resolution — “that pursuant to ASX Llstlng|Ru|e
10.1, Chapter 2E of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and for all other purposes
approval is granted for the Company to invest up to Aus$8.5 million in additional
funds to subscribe for up to 425,000 further preference shares (designated * Senes B
Preferred™) in Angioblast Systems Inc.”

The initial A$1 million was paid on [} December 2006.

+ See chupter 19 for defined terms. ;

. ) i
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Leval 29, 55 Collins Sireat Matbourna Viciorla 3000 AUSTRALIA 1 +01 3 8530 6038 1 +613 06533 5030 ww.monub]ml.com' ABN 681

STEM CELL PATENTS GRANTED FOR CARDIAC |
DISEASE AND NEW CLINICAL OPPORTUNITIES ’

Key polnts:

+ Two new granted patents protect and expand commercial opportunities for
use of proprietary adult stem cell platform technology

» Protect exclusive rights to use proprietary technology for cardiovascular

diseases i

» Grant exclusive rights to extract proprietary cells from various tissues in |
addition to bane marrow, including dentai pulp and adipose tissues (fat) |

+ Enable expanslon of market opportunities In major new applications such as
dental diseases and cosmetic enhancement procedures

» Strengthen ability to execute commercial partnerships i

Melbourne, Australia; 6 February 2007: Australia‘s adult stem cell company,
Mesoblast Limited (ASX:MSB), announced today that two key patents have been
granted by IP Australia relating to the adult stem cell technalogy platform to
which Mesoblast and its US-based sister company, Angioblast Systems Inc; have
exclusive commercial rights. These new patents protect and expand the
commercial opportunities of both companies. .

The first patent relates to using a unique population of adult stem cells known as
Mesenchymal Precursor Cells (MPCs) for repairing and growing new blood f
vessels. This patent underpins the broad commercial opportunities of using MPCs
for the treatment of heart attacks, congestive heart failure, coronary artery {
disease, and peripheral artery disease, conditions that affect many millions ofl
patients worldwide. .

The second patent relates to extracting these cells from a variety of sources in
addition to bone marrow, including dental pulp and adipose tissues such as
abdominal fat.

MPCs extracted from these new sources may be particularly effective for use :in a
range of new Indications, including dental applications such as periodontal disease
and cosmetic enhancement procedures using fat tissue, '

Bullding upon and continuing to expand a broad-based international patent
portfolio Is fundamental to the commercial objectives of both Mesoblast and
Angloblast, particularly executing strategic business transactions in the
orthopaedic and cardiovascular areas.

i
|

i
00 431 670 ACN 108 431 670
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e

The two new granted patents assume greater strategic importance to both
companies as they progress Investigational New Drug (IND) submissions to the
United States Food and Drug Administration {US FDA) and consider potential
corporate partnerships during lnitiation of Phase 2 clinical trials.

About Mesoblast

Mesoblast Limited (ACN 109 431 870) is an Australlan biotechnology company
committed to commercialisation of nove! treatments for orthopaedic conditions,
including a unique adult stem cell technology aimed at the regeneration and
repair of bone and cartilage. Mesoblast has worldwide exclustve rights to a series]
of patents and technologles that have béen developed over more than 10 years
relating to the identification, extraction and culture of adult Mesenchymal
Pracursor Cells (MPCs). The company has a substantial equity holding in
Angiablast Systems Inc, an American company developing the platform MPC
technology for the treatment of cardiovascular diseases, including repair and
regeneration of blood vessels and heart muscle. Mesoblast's strategy is to
maximise shareholder value through both corporate partnerships and rapid |
product commerclalisation.

For further information, please contact: ‘ :

Julie Meldrum
Corporate Communications Director

Mesoblast Limited _' . !

T: + 61 (03) 9639 6036
M: +61 (D) 419 228 128
E: julle.meldrum@mesoblast.com
W: www.mesaoblast.com

ACN 100 431 870



SALE OF SHARES !

Melbourne, Australia; 9 February 2007: The Mesoblast Board of Directors has been ad\nsed by the
company Founder, Professor Silviu Itescu, that yesterday he sold 6 million shares which were purchased by
institutional/sophisticated investors. ]

'
1

The Mesoblast Board is also pleased that Professor Itescu has agreed to enter into a voluntary escrow
agreement in relation to the balance of his shares (37 million) for a period of 12 months, demonstrating his long
term commitment to the company.

About Mesoblast !
Mesoblast Limited (ACN 109 431 870) is an Australian biotechnology company committed ]to commercialisation
of novel treatments for orthopaedic conditions, including a unique adult stem cell technology aimed at the
regeneration and repair of bone and cartilage. Mesoblast has worldwide exclusive rights to a series of patents
and technologies that have been developed over more than 10 years relating to the identification, extraction
and culture of adult Mesenchymal Precursor Cells (MPCs). The company has a substantial equity holding in
Angioblast Systems Inc, an American company developing the platform MPC technology for the treatment of
cardiovascular diseases, including repair and regeneration of blood vessels and heart muscie. Mesoblast’s
strategy is to maximise shareholder value through both corporate partnerships and rapid product
commaercialisation.

For further information, please contact:

Julie Meldrum Corporate Communications Director Mesoblast Limited

T: + 61 (03) 9639 6036

M: +61 (0) 419 228 128 . . .
E: julle. meldrum@mesoblast.com . ' |
W: www.mesoblast.com : '

!

|
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Dale: 15-Jan-07

The Manager
Listings Department
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

- No. of Pages {incl): 3 |

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL HOLDER

Dear SirfMadam,

Pursuant to Section 67 1B of the Corporations Law, AMP Limited hereby advises of a change in its
relevant interest in Mesoblast Ltd.

The enclosed ASIC Form 604 discloses all required details. |

Yours faithfully,

#

Justin Christopher

Head of Custody

BNP Paribas Securities Services
Phone: 02 9222 0029

BNP PARIBAS FUND SERVICES AUSTRALASLA PTY LTD ,
Lavei 8 £0 Casthweagh Stroel Sydney NEW 2000 Ausiralle sl
PO BOX R209 Royal Exchings NSW 1225 Australis

Tot: 161 2 8222 0000 - Fax: 481 2 9222 0255

ABN 71 002 655 874




Form 604

Corporations Law
Section 671B
Notice of Change of Interests of Substantial Holder

To:
ACNIARSN:

Mazobilast Ltd

108 431 870

1. Datails of substantial holder

HName:

AMP Umited ACN 079 354 519 and e relaled bodes corporale.

There was a change in the interasts of the substantial hokder on

Tha previous notice was given
The pravious notice was dated

to the company on

2. Previous and present voilng power

11-Jen-2007
31.Juk2008
27-Jul-2006

The totai number of volas attached 1o il the voting shares In the company or voting Interests in the
schame that the substantial holder or an esactate had a ralavant intevast In when tast required,
and when now required. to give a substantial holding notice to tha company or schema, ara as follows:

Pravious nobice Present nolice
Class of sacumties Person's voles ___Yoting pawer Person's voles Vi v
Fully Pald Ordmary 6.080.233 | — 10.33% 200,648 | 5.76%

3. Changea in relevant Interoats

Parseutars of each changa In, or changa in the nature of, relevant interests of the substantial holdar

or an assoclate (n voting securities of the

¥

give a substntial holding notice Lo the company of scheme Bra as follows:

¥ sinca the substantial holder was tas! required to

Porson whase relevant Considoration ghenin  |Class and number | Parson’a votas |
Date of change |interast changed Nature of change relation to changs of shares affeciod |affectad
Corraction 16 total
AMP Capitla! investrs numbar of lzsued
30-0ct-2008 to 7-Mov-2008  |Limited shares Not applicablel Not applicable) Not eppllea ]
Correction to Lotal
AMP Capitial Invastors numbar of lasued
14-Nov-06 Limited shares M- Neot spplicable] Not epplicabief
Comection to intal
numbar of izsuad |
28-Sep-08 AMP Lifa Limited shares Not applicable Not spplicable Kot appilcablel
Correction to wotal
umber of issued '
13-Dec-2006 to 27-Dec 2008 _[|LAMP shares Mot applicablel Mot applicablsl __ Not sppllcabee
Correction to totat ;
number of lasued '
13-Doc-2008 to 27-Dec-2008 [Copent Nominees Pty Limil|shares Nol applicatief Not applicable] Mot epplicable]
Correction to totat '
numbaer of lasued
|2-Aug-2008 to 28-5ep-2008 | Cogent Nominees Pty Limillshares Not applicable] Not applicable] Not appllcablel
i
4. Presant relavant interesta 1
Particulars of each relavant iterest of the substantial hotdor In voting securifes afiar the changs are as {oflows: %
Registered holder of Poraon anitied o be Clasa and numbar | Person s voles
Holder of relevant Intorest sscurilios registered as holder | Natura of relovant interest lof securties affeciod
AMP Life Limited AMP Life Limaed AMP Ufe Limited AMP Life In entitfod to be | Fully Faia 3.013.201
the registeved hokder of the [Ordinary: 3,013,201
class and numbar of
securiies listad besida its
nama AMP Life Limited ia g
controitad body corporsta
of AMP Limitad within the
Imeaning of Section 808(3}
of tha Corporations Law
AMP Capital Investors Limited | Cogent Momineas Pty Cogand Mominees Pty  |ARP Capitat, in its capacity] Fully Palg 1,137,191
{'AMP Capital') Umited <SMP Accounts>  {Limited <SMP 49 the investment managar|Ordinary: 1,137,181
| Accounts> for the persona or rusls
listed beuides its rame,
has the power to control
voting andfor the dsposal
of securities, AMP Capitat
is 9 controlied bady
corporete of AMP Limited
within the maaning of
Saction 608(3) of the
P Morgan Nominees LAMP Corporstions Law Fully Pai¢ 1.194 592
Ausiralia Limited Orcinary: 1,194 582
Naltonat Nominees Pty | Equipsaper Fuly Paid 855,664
Limtlad [Oedinary: 855,684
Total 6.200.648




5 Change In azszociation
Tha persona who have become associates of, sensed o bo assoclates of, or have changed tha nature
of thekr association wifh, the subsiantial sharehaider In retation to voting interests in the company or scheme are as follows:

Name and ACN Nature of aszociation
No Changes

6. Addresaes
Tha addresses of persons named in this foem are as foliows:

Name . Address

AMP Life Lirnited Lavel 24, 33 Alired Street, Sydney NSW 2000
AMP Cepital Investors Limited Level 22, 33 Alfred Street, Sydnoy NSW 2000
Copent Nominees Pty Limtted Level 6, 60 Castlereagh Streat, Sydney NSW 2000
Equipsuper 171 Finders Street, Meibouma VIC 3000

JP Morgan Nominees Austratia Limited 259 Goorge Street, Sydney NSW 2000

Natonal Nominaes Pty Limited 271 Cofiirs Street, Melboums VIC 3000

Thie mtice of changs of interasts of subslantiat holder (AS1C Form 604) comyrisas 2 paga/s In lotal,
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N Form 604

Carporations Act 2001
Saction 671B

Notice of change of Interests of substantial holder

!
}5 July 2001
!

To Company Name/Scheme Mesoblast Ltd

109 431 870

ACN/ARSN

1. Details of substantiat holder (1)

Name

Silviu Itascu

ACMN/ARSN {if applcable)

There was a change in the intarests of the

substantial holder on

The previous notice was given to the company on

The previous notice was dated

2. Previous and present voting powar

09/02/2007

16/12/2004

16/12/2004

The tota! number of votes attachad to all the voting sharas in the company or voting {rdarasts in the schems that the substantial holder o

an associate (2) had a relevant interest {3) in when last required, and whan now required, fo give a substantial holding notlee to the

company or scheme, ara as follows:

Class of securities (4) Pravious notice Presant notice- |
Person's votes Voling power (5) Person’s vobas Veting pewer (5)
Ordinary 43,120,000 46.1% 37,120,000 34.49% l

3. Changos in relevant interosts

i

Particulars of each charge in, or change in the nature of, a relevant interest of the substantial holder or an assoclate in voling securities of
the company or schema, since the substantial holder was last required to give a substantial holding notice ta the company or schame are

as follows:
Date of Person whose Nature of change (6) Considaration given in | Clags and number | Person's votes
change relevant interest . rofation lo change (7) | of securities atfected
changed afected
8ilviua Ordinary {6,000,000)
Itascu $12,900,000 (6,000,000) | (5.57)4
‘ |
i
[
1
4, Progornt rolovant interosts
Particulars of each relevant interest of the substantial holder in woting securittes after the change are as follows:
Holder of Registerad holder | Person antilled to be Nature of relevart Class and numbar Person's volas
relevant of securities registered as holder intarast (6} of securities
interest (8) .
Silviu . Ordinary 37,120,000
Itaescu Silviu Itescu 37,120,000 34.49%|

'
]




|
604 Page2of2 I‘|5 July 20601

§. Changes in assoclatton

The persons who hawe bacome associates (2} of, ceased to be associates of, or have changed the nature of thair association (8) with, the
substantial holder in relation to voting interests in the company or scheme are as follows:

Name and ACN/ARSN (if applicable) | Nature of assoclation

The addresses of persons named in this form are as follows:

|
|
|
6. Add |
|
|
|
|

Name ' Address
8ilviu Itascu 10/16 Maple Grove, TOORAK
Signature
print name Kavin Hollingaworth capacity Company Secretary
sign here date 09/02/2007

DIRECTIONS
(1)  Ifthere ara a number of substantial holders with sienilar or relatad relovant interests (eq. a corporation and #s retated corporations, or the
manager and frustee of an equlty trust), the names ¢ould be included ih an annexure to the form. If the relevant interests of a group of

persons are assentially similar, they may be rafarred fo throughout the form as a specifically named group if the membership of each group,
with the names and addregses of members is clearly set out in paragraph 6 of the form.

{2) Ses the definition of 'asst;data" in ;;ectinn 9 of the Corporations Act 2001. '

{(3) See tha definition of “relevant interest” In sections 608 and 671B(7) of the Corporations Act 2001.
{4) The voling shares of a company constitute one class unless divided into separate classes.

(5) The person's voles divided by the total votes in the body corporata or scheme multiplied by 100.

(6) Include details of.

(8) any retavant agreement or other circumstances because of which the change in relevant interest occurred. If subsection 671B(4)
applies, a capy of any document setling out the terms of any relevant agreement, and a statement by the person giving full and
accurate details of any contract, scheme or arrangement, must accompariy this form, together with a written statement certifying this
confract, schame or arrangerment; and

[()] any qualification of the powaer of a person to exsrcise, control the exarcise of, or Influence the exercise of, the voling powers or
disposal of the securifies to which tha relevant interast relates (indicating dearly the particular securities to which the qualification
applies).

Sae the definition of “relevant agreement” in section 8 of the Comorations Act 2001,
{7) Details of the consideration must include any and all benefits, money and ather, that any person from whom a relevant interest was acquired
has, or may, bgcoms entitied to receive in relstion to that acquisition, Details must be included even if the benefit is conditionat on the

happening ¢r not of a comtingency. Details must be included of any banefit pai¢ on behalf of the substantial holder or its associate in refation
to the acquisitions, aven if they ara not paid directly to the person from whom tha relavant intarest was acquired.

{8) If the substantal holder is unable to determine the identity of the parson {ag. if the relevant interest arises because of an option) write
“unknown”.

(8) Give details, if apprapriate, of the present azsodation and any change in that association since the last substantial holding notice.




Appendix 3Y

Change of Director's Interest No’_tice
i

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Nofice

.

Rufe 3.194.2

Information or documents not available now must be given to ASX us soon as available.  Information and

documents given o ASX become ASX'y property and may be made public.
Infroduced 30/9:2001.

Name of entity  Mesoblast Ltd

ABN 109 431 870

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rale 3.19A.2 and as agent for,

director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporalions Act.

the

Naige of Director Silviu liesgu

Date of last notice 17 December 2004

Part. 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securifies

In the case of a wrust, this includes inrerests In the trust made available by the responsible entity of the triest

Nate: In the casc of 8 compzy, interosts which come within parsgraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of 3 dircotor™ should be |

disclosed ia (bia pant. ;
N i
Direct or indirect interest Direct Interest
WNature of indirect interest N/A

{including registered holder)
Note: Provide detwils of the ciiowmstinecs giving rise ta tbe relovant

inerest,

Date of change 9 February 2007 |
I

No. of securities held prior to change 43,120,000 ’

Class Ordinary 5
i

Number acquired N/A

Number disposed 6,000,000

Yalue/Consideration $£12,900,000

Note: if considermtion is nomecash, provide dowdls and estimeted

valuating

No. of secarities held after change
' 37,120,000

Nature of change
Exminple: an-saket bude. olt-marka trade, eacrcise of options, issuc of . ¢
soauitics wder dividend rei plan, poticipation in bery-hack Off-market trade

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

117372002




Appendix 3Y

Change of Director*s Interest Notice

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: Lo the caw of a company, interess which come within paragraph {ii) of the definition of *notifisble intcrest of & director™ should be

discloscd in this part.

Detail of contract Nii
Nature of interest Nil
Name of registered holder N/A |
(if issued securities)
t
Date of change N/A
No. and class of securities to | Nil
which interest related prior to !
change
Note: Detaila nre only required for i conbmer in relation
ta which the interest has changed
Interest acquired Nil
Interest disposed Nil \
|
Value/Consideration Nil |
Note: I condderation s non-cish, provide dewils md
20 estimaued valustion : i
Interest after change Nil

+ Sce chupter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3Y Page 2
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A BECURITIES SERVICES

Date: 9-Feb-07

The Manager
Listings Department
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

No. of Pages (incl): 3

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL HOLDER

Dear Sir/Madam,

Pursuant to Section 671B of the Corporations Law, AMP Limited hereby advises of a change in its
relevant interest in Mesoblast Limited.

The enclosed ASIC Form 604 discloses all required details.

Yours faithfulty,

Justin Christophar

Head of Custody

BNP Paribas Securities Services
Phone: 02 9222 0029

BNP PARIBAS FUND SERVICES AUSTRALASIA PTY LTD
Lavei & G0 Castioresgh Streel Bydnay NSW 2000 Austrailn
PO S0X R209 Roysl Exchaings NSW 1225 Australia

Toi +51 202720000 - Fox: 612 0222 0255

AN 1 002 855 874




Form 604

Corporations Law
Sgetlon 671B .
Notice of Chanﬂo of Interests of Substantial Holder

To:

ACNIARSN:

Masoblast Limited

106 431 870

1. Detzits of substantial holdar

Nama:

AMP Limited ACN G768 354 519 and its related bodies corparate.

There was a change in the interests of the substantial holder on
Tha previous notice was given to the company on

The previous natice was dated

2. Previous and prasent voling power

08-Feb-2007
09-Feb-2007
11-Jen-2007

The total numbar of volas attached to gl the voling sheres in the company or voting Interests in the
schema that tha subelantiat holdar or an assocate had a relevant interest in when last required,
end when now required, to give a subsiantial holding notice to tha comparny o schemae, ara as fo0ows;

Pravicus notica Present notice
Ciass of secuntles Parson’s viles Voling powar DParson's volss Voting powes
[Fuly Paid Crdinary 6,200,648 | EToH 11 200.648 | 10.40%)

3. Changes in relevant Interosts

Particuiars of each changa in, of changa in the nature of, refevant Intarests of the substantial holder
of an associata In voling securities of the company since the substantial holder was fast required to
ghve a substenitial holdng rotice 1o the company or scheme are as follows:

1

Consderation given in

|
i
|
|
E
!
!
!
1
|

!
Parson whoss rolevant Class and number | Person’s voles
Date of change serest changed Nalura of changa refation to change of shares affectsd |aflected |
Fully Paid Ondinany
{8Febo7 AMP Ufa Limitad Share apguisition $3.748.374 57 1,740.067] 1,740.,067]
i
Cogent Nominess Py Fully Paid Ordman |
|8-Feb07 Limited Share soguisition $1.423.198 85 560.514 . B650.514
Cogent Nomineas Pty Fully Paid Qrdinary !
s-Eeb07 Limited «<SMP Accounts>  |Share acguisition $2.108.341 .54 1.020.704 1.020.704
Fully Pald Ordinary
B-Fab-07 Equipsuper - |Shara aoquésition $395.489 91 183,645 183.545]
Fully Pald Ondinary
B-Feb-07 | LAMP Share acquisition $335,835 08| 155.937 155.937]
Sml'a Authority Fully Pald Ordinary
B-Feb-07 Suparannuation Schema _|Shars sequisition $1,638,333.28 713.009) 713,00
. Fully Pald Crdinary
8-Feb-07 UniSuper Limited Shara scculsition $1.133.870.26 626.273] 526.220)
4. Prasent relevant interasts
Particutars of each ‘hmunflrwmtmﬁalwderInvoﬁngsamr;!hsaimmamngamasfonows:

’ Registered holder of Parson enitied to be Ciass end numnber | Parson's votas
Hofder of relevant Interast secuntles reqislared 8s holdar | Noture of retovard intarest |of secuntias affecied i
AMF Life Limited AMP Life Limétad (AMP Lifa Linited AMP Life is entitiad to be | Fully Fald 4,753,268

the reglsterad holder of the |Ordinary: 4,753,268
class and aumber of
securities listed beside its
nama AMP Llle Limited is o
controllad body corporats
of AMP Limited within the
meaning of Section G033}
of the Corporations Lew
AMP Capital Investors Eimited [Cogent Nominpas Pty Cogeni Nomineea Pty |AktP Capdal, in its capacity| Fully Paid 2.157.895
{'AMP Capital') Limited <SMP Agtounts>  [Limited <SMP zs the investment manager|Ordinary: 2,157 865
Acoounts> for tha persons or rusks
Hsiad besides its nama,
has the pawer 1o control
volng andio the dsposal
of securities, AMP Capitat
is 8 controlied body
corporate of AMP Limited
within the meaning of
Saction G08(3) of Lha :
Cogent Nominees Pty Cogent Nominees Pty |Corporations Law Fully Paid 660.514
Umited Limited Ordinary: 660,514 1
JP Morgan Nominees LAMP Fully Paic¢ 1.350,529
Australla tmited Ordinary: 1.350.520} |
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8. Change In assoclation

Australla Lienited Superannuation
Scheme

National Nominees Pty Equipsuper

Limited

National Naminaes Pty UniSuper Limitad

Lirnlted

The persons who have bacome associates of, ceased 0 be assodates of, or have changed the nature
of thekr association with, the substantial shareholder In relation o voting interests in the company or schema ara as follows:

Ry s

Ordinary: 743.006

F i

Nama and ACN . Nature of sssoclation

o 3
6. Addresses
The addresses of persons named i this form sre a3 foiows:
Name Address -
AMP Lifa Limited Lovel 24, 33 Alfred Streel, Sydney NSW 2000
AMP Caplal Investors Limited Levet 22, 33 Alfred Straetl. Sydnay NSW 2000
Cogent Nomineas Pty Limied Levet §, 60 Castlereagh Sireet, Sydney NSW 2000
Equipsuper 171 Finders Shreet, Metboume VIC 3000

JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited

National Nominaes Pty Limited

Stata Authaority Superannuation Scheme

Unisuper Limited

259 George Streat, Sydney NSW 2000

271 Collins Streat. Melbouma VIC 3000

Leval 14, 83 Clarence Sireat, Sydney NSW 2000
Leval 28, 367 Colins Street, Metbourne 3000

This notica of changa of interests of subsianttal holder (ASIC Form 604) comprisas 2 paga/s in lotal.

Fully Pald 1.05%209
Ordinary: 1.039.209
Fully Pald 526.228

Ordinary: 526,228 i
B 11 .EEE.EE




FDA Clearance Positions Mesoblast

To commerclahse Stem Cell Products -
__ln Wo,rlld.s Largest Heaitthare Maf rket'_f

Mesobla:,! rmaduevedatremendousamouﬁinaverysrwﬂﬂmeirame,
and fas now reached a significant new stage of maturity characierised by

ming commencement of human Phags 2 cnn:cai ma.ls Inlhe Umked - .
”;imm "?e : core ket AT The major h!ghilgh! oflhepast quarl.el ocourredoms Dootriver 2006~
woid's larges . 7T, when Mesoblast recelved clearance of ifs IND subsmission from the FDA to -
ﬂl\e company ::l;o;?sed tﬁn bmg;ng to T;rkei a :afa. rnghfprofﬁ rrk;rui?v “commence & Phase.2 Clinical Trat for spinal fusion in the United States. -
nel procbct
. alloganele (un or ‘off the sheif) adult stem co ) or the.¢ ec ®. “_FDA clearance was received within 30 days of the Company’s filing its [ND

. ireatment of & broad of othopaedic oondiuona .

"BHge.oLof .. upplicafion, demonstrating the strength and robustnms ofthe data ™
- Highlights during Ihe final quarter of 2006 included: -, .. -package submiled by the Company. mportarty, ‘the IND. sutriesion and
- '»- United States Food and Drug Adrinistration (FOA) dearame uf - : R
Mesqblast s spinal fusion nvestigafional New: Drug (IND) submlss"on - F
3_ .. Furtherposrtwa;ewltsfrcm clnc;alemdpra-cluﬁcal trials. -ahead of schedule, .. e el - o
GmnﬂngofakgypaLm[mMUS and . SRR '-ResultsoflhePhase2 malmltbeusedtc:supportapwofai Phase 3dmml
lna! of Mesoblast's patented technotogy for Epmal tusion, aiming to ahmmate

e I & [ M baneg
8 ::f;?;‘i;fs"'g g‘o:;ﬂﬂinﬁmﬁ‘ '“ " .".f”'fm'f US’ ... ihe need for autograft {or patient's own hip bone gratt), reduos oompﬁcazmns

' T - associared with exraung treatment segimens, and lmpfo.ve fusion gutcomes, |

e

What does FDA cleara nce mean to the ;

Company? ™~ T
"In grder lo oommercu!zse our products in the vmdd s largesl. hea!lh can °

" arket, the United States, we must recelve FDA clearances for clinfcal Lnals
 and ulimately epproval of safely and efficacy endpaints for product sales.
Our FDA submiission In November 2008 contained detalled resulls of our =«
- product manutaciunng and scale-up processes, our large anima) s!umes, :

- and ouwr pilol clirical trials. ity rapid clearance enables us o map out our

dxmcal timeslines to product regisiration, and consequently product 7™

. ." ireatmgnt of mdxovauoula! disaasee
Anglobiasl has completed final pre- IND maeungs wakh the FDA and.
_based on these as welt as ongoing discussions wilh potential strategic
" panners, is In final preparafions to complete g IND submission for ahrsi
" cardiovascutar clinicat indication by the end of tms quarler. In this case, -
_'Angioblast will seek to be the first company to receive FDA clearancs P

o tes! cathetor-based delivery | ot Bllogeneis cells in pallents with - RPN T
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A news item oa Channel 9 highighlad & bve slem cell pracadiuie using Mescblest lechnology end the ludest genecrlian Mmaping .,y_.mm lor siem coll dedvery from

Johnsen & Jehnson's Cordis Corporeion

mesoblast:
thc ndun t m_cm compapy

LWBHiB. 55 Gollins Straai Melboume .
" Vigtora 3000 AUSTRALIA -

"t H—61396396035 .
<f.+81 3 6538 6030
'ACN109431 8?0

Lmasoblast,com




Level 39, 55 Colling Sireet Melbourng Vicloria 3000 AUSTRALIA t +613 963D 6036 ¢ +61 2 5629 6030 www.nmapoblagt.com AHN 68108431

MESOBLAST'S ROAD TO UNITED STATES
PRODUCT REGISTRATION

Melbourne, Australia; 7 March 2007: Australia's adult stem cell company,
Mesoblast Limited (ASX:MSB; USOTC:MBLTY), today provided Investors with a
timetable and update of proposed clinical programs leading to product
reglistration in the United States, the world's largest health care market.

The Phase II spinal fuston trial is due to commence by Q2 2007. The results of
this trial will be used to support a pivotat Phase 3 clinical trial of Mesoblast's
patented technology for spinal fusion, alming to eliminate the need for autograft
{or patlent's own hlp bone graft), reduce complications assoclated with existing
treatment regimens, and improve fusion outcomes. |
|
Equally as Important is the progress made by Mesoblast's US-based sister i
company, Angioblast Systems Inc; which Is focused on commerclalising the same
platform stem cell technology for the treatment of cardiovascular diseases. |

Angloblast has completed final pre-IND meetings with the FDA and, based on
these as well as ongoing discussions with potential strategic partners, ts in final
preparations to complete its IND submission for a first cardiovascular clinical
indication by the end of this quarter.

Angloblast will seek to be the first company to receive FDA clearance to test
catheter-based delivery of allogeneic (or 'off-the-shelf’) cells in patients with
heart attacks.

In order to commercialise our products in the United States, FDA clearances must
be received for clinical trials and ultimately approval of safety and efficacy
endpoints for product sales. Our FDA submission for a Phase 2 trial in spinal
fusion, which was cleared In December 2006, contained detailed results of our
product manufacturing and scale-up processes, our large animal studies, and our
pliot clinical trials. Its rapid clearance enables us to now map out our clinical
timelines to product registration, and consequently product commercialisation.

Anticipated timelines for our clinical programs are:

Q1 2007 FDA IND submission for Phase 2 trial in first cardiac application
Q2.2007 Phase 2 spinal fusion allogeneic trial begins in US

Q2 2007 Pilot Trial long bone fractures enrolment complete i
Q2 2007 Pilot Trial severe coronary artery disease enrolment complete

Q3 2007 Phase 2 allogeneic trial for heart attacks begins In US

2008 Additional Phase 2 orthopaedic and cardiac trials commence
2008 Enrolment complete in allogeneic Phase 2 trial for spinal fusion
2008 Enrolment complete in allogeneic Phase 2 trial for heart attacks

>2008 Pivotal/Phase 3 registration trials commence in lead orthopaedic
and cardiac Indications ' ' i

g0 ACN U9 431 870



'About Mesoblast Limited ;

Both Mesoblast and Angioblast have already established successful collaborative

]
relationships with major device and pharmaceutical organisations in the executiorli
of preclinical and clinical trials. Progression through Phase 2 clinical trials and onl
to pivotal Phase 3 registration trials will serve to greatly expand and accelerate
each company's opportunities for major strategic partnerships.

i

Mesoblast Limited (ASX:MSB/USOTC:MBLTY) is an Australian biotechnology
company committed to commercialisation of novel treatments for orthopaedic
conditions, including a unique aduit stem cell technology aimed at the
regeneration and repair of bone and cartilage. Mesoblast has worldwide exclusive
rights to a series of patents and technologies that have been developed over '
more than 10 years relating to the identification, extraction and culture of adult
Mesenchymal Precursor Cells (MPCs). The company has also acquired a
substantial interest In Angloblast Systems Inc, an American company developing
the platform MPC technology for the treatment of cardiovascular diseases,
including repalr and regeneration of blood vessels and heart muscle. Mesaoblast's
strategy Is to maximise shareholder value through both corporate partnerships
and rapid product commerclalisation,

For further information, please contact:

Julie Meldrum .
Corporate Communications Director
Mesoblast Limited .

T: + 61 {03) 9639 6036

M: +61(0) 419 228 128 ‘ ’ i
£: julie.meldrum@mesoblast.com
W: www.mesoblast.com

Loval 39, 55 Colling Street Malbourne Victoria 3000 AUSTRALIA t+61 38635 6036 1 +61 30639 6030 www.mesobluat.com AUN B 108 431 870 ACN 109 431 B7U
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STANDARD | |
&POOR'S “
Press Release

Standard & Poor’s Announces March Quarterly Rebalance to th'e
S&P/ASX Indices

]
|

Sydney, March 2, 2007 — Standard & Poor’s Index Services, the leading provider off equity
indices in Australia, announces that effective close of trade March 16, 2007, the fo?lowmt=
constituent additions and deletions will take place in the S&P/ASX indices.

L

|
ADDITIONS | 1
BBP BABCOCK & BROWN POWER ‘
| REMOVALS . .
| RIC RIDLEY CORPORATION LIMITED 1
| W
- ADDITIONS
BBP BABCOCK & BROWN POWER
| ABP ABACUS PROPERTY GROUP
| FXL FLEXIGROUP LIMITED
| AEZ APN/UKA EUROPEAN RETAIL TRUST
CDI CHALLENGER DIVERSIFIED PROPERTY GROUP i
AOE ARROW ENERGY NL '
NXS NEXUS ENERGY LIMITED
CBH CBH RESOURCES LIMITED
CIF CHALLENGER INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
BEC - BECTON PROPERTY GROUP
OKN OAKTON LIMITED '
ILF ING REAL ESTATE COMMUNITY LIVING FUND GROUP
GIT GALILEO JAPAN TRUST
BVA BRAVURA SOLUTIONS LIMITED r
CbU CUDECO LIMITED
www.standardandpoors.com.au




MMX MURCHISON METALS LIMITED

AZA ANZON AUSTRALIA LIMITED

WL IWL LIMITED )

CTO CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED
RCYCA RIVERCITY MOTORWAY GROUP
AGS ALLIANCE RESOURCES LIMITED
TRS THE REJECT SHOP LIMITED

-DYL DEEP YELLOW LIMITED
REMOVALS

ANE AUSPINE LIMITED

AV] AVIJENNINGS LIMITED

SGL SYDNEY GASLTD

HPX HPAL LIMITED

CAA CAPRAL ALUMINIUM LIMITED

PSD PSIVIDA LIMITED

AHS ATLAS GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
STG STAGING CONNECTIONS GROUP LIMITED
GDY GEODYNAMIC LIMITED

MXI1 MAXITRANS INDUSTRIES LIMITED
IIN [INET LIMITED

CUE CUE ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED
IGD IAMGOLD CORPORATION

VLL VILLAGE LIFELTD

....... avies|| L

ADDITIONS

BBP BABCOCK & BROWN POWER

FXL FLEXIGROUP LIMITED

CDI CHALLENGER DIVERSIFIED PROPERTY GROUP
GJT GALILEO JAPAN TRUST

BVA BRAVURA SOLUTIONS LIMITED

CDhU CUDECO LIMITED

AGM ALLEGIANCE MINING NL

MMX MURCHISON METALS LIMITED

CTO CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED
RCYCA RIVERCITY MOTORWAY GROUP

AGS ALLIANCE RESOURCES LIMITED

TRS THE REJECT SHOP LIMITED

DYL DEEP YELLOW LIMITED

MCQ MACQUARIE CAPITAL ALLIANCE GROUP
PMM PORTMAN LIMITED

CMW CROMWELL GROUP

EWC ENERGY WORLD CORPORATION LTD
EBB EVEREST BABCOCK & BROWN LIMITED
AEP ALLCO EQUITY PARTNERS LIMITED
HFA HFA HOLDINGS LIMITED

WTP WATPAC LIMITED

CPR CLIVE PEETERS LIMITED

OAK OAKS HOTELS & RESORTS LIMITED
JML JABIRU METALS LIMITED

PFL PATTIES FOODS LIMITED

CFU CERAMIC FUEL CELLS LIMITED




AAX
AED
BGD
GBG
RIV
LRF
RCR
HZN
PLA
MBR
HER
EMI

AVE
DWS
MBN
PMA
AUB
IPN
RRT
MLB
GMI
CPK
KMN
FXR
NOD
AVO
ARR
RIT
MFT
MSB
LYC
EZL
KAR
VIR
MAFCA
EQT
SPH
AIM
CUO
REX
CIL
NFL
MAE
GRR
MPS
RHL
PFG
LFE
VKI
BLP
MPY
TZN
MMN
GAA

CNB

AUSENCO LIMITED

AED OIL LIMITED

BOULDER STEEL LIMITED
GINDALBIE METALS LTD
RIVERSDALE MINING LIMITED
LINQ RESOURCES FUND

RCR TOMLINSON LIMITED
HORIZON OIL LIMITED
PLATINUM AUSTRALIA LIMITED
MARINER BRIDGE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
HERALD RESOURCES LIMITED
EMITCH LIMITED

MINERAL RESOURCES LIMITED
AEVUM LIMITED '

DWS ADVANCED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LIMITED

MIRABELA NICKEL LIMITED

PRECIOUS METALS AUSTRALIA LIMITED
AUSTBROKERS HOLDINGS LIMITED
INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER NETWORK LTD
RECORD REALTY

MELBOURNE IT LIMITED

GLOBAL MINING INVESTMENTS LIMITED
CP1 LIMITED

KINGS MINERALS NL

FOX RESOURCES LIMITED

NOMAD BUILDING SOLUTIONS LIMITED
AVOCA RESOURCES LIMITED

ARASOR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
RUBICON JAPAN TRUST

MFS DIVERSIFIED GROUP

MESOBLAST LIMITED

LYNAS CORPORATION LIMITED

EUROZ LIMITED

KAROON GAS AUSTRALIA LIMITED
VIRIDIS CLEAN ENERGY GROUP
MULTIPLEX ACUMEN PRIME PROPERTY FUND
EQUITY TRUSTEES LIMITED

SPHERE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

AIM RESOURCES LIMITED

COPPERCO LIMITED

REGIONAL EXPRESS BOLDINGS LIMITED
CENTREBET, INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NATURAL FUEL LIMITED

MARION ENERGY LIMITED

GRANGE RESOURCES LIMITED

MACARTHURCGOCOK PROPERTY SECURITIES FUND

RURALCO HOLDINGS LIMITED
PRIME FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
LIFE THERAPEUTICS LIMITED
VIKING INDUSTRIES LIMITED

BABCOCK & BROWN RESIDENTIAL LAND PARTNERS GRO

MFS LIVING AND LEISURE GROUP
TERRAMIN AUSTRALIA LIMITED
MACMIN SILVER LTD

GENEPHARM AUSTRALASIA LIMITED

CANBERRA INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED

|
!
|
U

P



PVE PO VALLEY ENERGY LIMITED

NCK NICK SCALI LIMITED

REMOVALS

VLL VILLAGE LIFELTD

CUE CUE ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED

MXI MAXITRANS INDUSTRIES LIMITED

AHS ATLAS GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

STG STAGING CONNECTIONS GROUP LIMITED

PME PRO MEDICUS LIMITED

CWT CHALLENGER WINE TRUST

GTG GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

SAQ SYDNEY ATTRACTIONS GROUP LIMITED

PAY PAYCE CONSOLIDATED LIMITED

OCL OBJECTIVE CORPORATION LIMITED

BDS BRIDGESTONE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

WAM WAM CAPITAL LIMITED

NCI NATIONAL CAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

HIC HUNTLEY INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
" ARA ARIADNE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

ACR ACRUX LIMITED

ESV ESERVGLOBAL LIMITED

CHQ CHIQUITA BRANDS SOUTH PACIFIC LIMITED

ACL ALCHEMIA LIMITED

HNG HGL LIMITED

CLH COLLECTION HOUSE LIMITED

TZL TZ LIMITED

GLB GLOBE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ALR ABERDEEN LEADERS LIMITED

ROK ROCK BUILDING SOCIETY (THE)

SDI SDI LIMITED

QCH QUEENSLAND COTTON HOLDINGS LIMITED

AZZ ANTARES ENERGY LIMITED

SFC SCHAFFER CORPORATION LIMITED

AGI AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

CIX CALLIDEN GROUP LIMITED

MST METAL STORM LIMITED

GFD GREEN’S FOODS LIMITED

CDF COMMONWEALTH DIVERSIFIED SHARE FUND

UNW UNWIRED GROUP LIMITED

ORL OROTONGROUP LIMITED

SPL STARPHARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

WFL WILLMOTT FORESTS LIMITED

IBC IRONBARK CAPITAL LIMITED

GAP GALE PACIFIC LIMITED

ADG ADTRANS GROUP LIMITED

CMK CUMNOCK COAL LIMITED

CLT CELLNET GROUP LIMITED

IDT INSTITUTE OF DRUG TECHNOLOGY AUSTRALIA LIMITED

MOS MOSAIC OIL NL

LIP LIPA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

CDX CDS TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

EOS ELECTRO OPTIC SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED

SYM SYMEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

NLX NYLEX LIMITED




DRA DRAGON MINING LIMITED

CGX CGA MINING LIMITED

AAT AUTRON CORPORATION LIMITED

EON ESPREON LIMITED

LCL LIGHTING CORPORATION LIMITED !
MXL MXL LIMITED !
PPK PPK LIMITED

DKS DANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED

BSO BASS STRAIT OIL TRUST

CMQ CHEMEQ LIMITED i
NAL NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED 3

. {
Company additions to and deletions from a Standard & Poor’s index do not in a:ny way
reflect an opinion on the investment merits of the company. Information about the S&P/ASX
index methodology is available at www standardandpoots:.com.

About Standard & Poor’s :

Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies (NYSE:MHP), is the world's
foremost provider of financial market imtelligence, including independent creditl ratings,
indices, risk evaluation, investment research and data. With approximately 7,500 employees,
including wholly owned affiliates, located in 21 countries and markets, Standard & Poor's is
an essential part of the world's financial infrastructure and has played a leading role for more
than 140 years in providing investors with the independent benchmarks they need to feel
more confident about their investment and financial decisions. For more informatiton, visit

http://'www standardandpoors.com.au i

For more information contact:
Simon Karaban, Index Services Sharon Beach, Media
Tel (61) 2 9255 9870 Tel (61) 3 9631 2152




MESOBLAST WELL FUNDED FOR CLINICAL TRIALS

Financial Results Reflect Exciting Progress

Melbourne, Australla; 20 February 2007: Australia’s adult stem cell
company, Mesoblast Limited (ASX:MSB), today announced its financial

results for the six months to 31 December 2006 with cash reserves of :
more than $15.7 million,

Executive Chairman, Mr Michael Spooner, said that both Mesoblast and its
sister company, Angioblast Systems Inc in the United States, were very
well positioned to continue rapid product commercialisation for both
orthopaedic and cardiovascular applications, respectively, based on the !
shared adult stem cell technology platform,

He sald that Mesoblast had made tremendous progress during the six ,
months to 31 December 2006 and had accomplished many of its
objectives well ahead of schedule. In equal measure, he noted that the
ensuing six to 12 months would be equally exclting as the company
commences US Food and Drug Administration (FDA) clinical trials and
advances new applications.

In the six months to 31 December 2006, Mesoblast achieved a number of
critical milestones including:

- A successful Investigational New Drug (IND) submission to the
FDA to commence a Phase 2 Clinical Trial for spinal fusion;

- Positive results from clinical and pre-clinical trials;

- Validation of its high-margin business model to use “off-the-
sheif” adult stem cells in unrelated, or allogeneic, recipients I

- Granted a key patent in the US.

Mesoblast Founder and Chief Scientific Adviser, Professor Silviu Itescy,
said that the IND submission and clearance were key milestone targets
outlined in the company's IPO Praspectus In December 2004, and were
accomplished over six months ahead of schedule. '

He sald FDA clearance to move Into Phase 2 clinical trials would atso
expand the partnering opportunitles for both Mesoblast and Angloblast. |

“Both companies have already established successful ccllaboratlvle
relationships with major device and pharmaceutical organisations in the
execution of preclinical and diinical trials,” Professor Itescu said. “The
results have enabled both companies to develop strong and compelling
product portfolios upon which strategic partnerships can be cemented. |

l
|
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“The FDA clearance, achieved within 30 days of IND submission, was
based on Mesablast’s extensive data package, which Included successful:

- Large scale manufacture of a well characterised, uniform, and
safe “off the shelf” stem cell product. This product is generated
using Mesoblast's proprietary technology through large scale I
expansion of stem cells obtained from one donor for the
treatment of potentially thousands of unrelated (allogeneic)
patients with various orthopaedic conditions;

- Large animal preclinicai trials demonstrated that Mesoblast's
allogeneic stem cells are very effective for inducing bone growth
In various indications such as spinal fusion and long bone
defects; and i

. Data from two pilot clinical trials undertaken in Australia to
evaluate the safety and feastbility of Mesoblast’s Standard
Operating Procedures and cell implantation in patients with |
orthopaedic and cardiovascular conditions. : |

“During the six month period, a foundation patent was granted in the US.
Patents are the lifeblood of the Company, and granting of patents In.
various jurisdictions protect our commercial rights and ensure we have]’
freedom to operate commercially. We are committed to the ongoing
expansion, broadening, and development of our intellectual property
portfolio,” Professor Itescu added.

Mr Spooner said additional highlights of the past six months included:

» A successful placement of shares to institutional and sophisticated
investors, plus a Share Purchase Plan for existing sharei'\oiders,i
which raised a total of $17.17 miflion to fund two clinical trials and,
ongoing operations.

« Increased investment In Angioblast of $8.5 million to secure in total
a shareholding of 39.2% on a fully diluted basis. This investment
will fund an agreed cardiovascuiar Phase II Clinical Trial in the LS.

He sald the financial results for the six months to 31 December 2006,
showed a net loss of $3,969,751 whilst the comparative flgure for the 5ix
months to 31 December 2005 was $2,883,547. The increased net loss
directly related to the increase in activity and operations of the company
in achieving s core milestones. :

*In line with Mesoblast’s accounting practices, ail development expenditurg
assoclated with bringing the technology to market is expensed.

Level 45, 55 Colting Sireet Malbourne Victoria 3000 AUSTRALIA t+61 3 9639 6036 f+61 3 9630 6130 www.esoblosh.oom ABN 68 109 431 870 ACH 108 431 870
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*Revenue for the period was $1,101,776 as compared to $883,586. -

*Mesoblast’s cash balance and term deposits amounted to $15,716,040
compared to $15,093,834. The Directors believe that there are sufficient
funds on hand to meet the Company’s Immediate objectives.

“The company's financial results are very much In fine with our forecasts
and reflect the ongoing and significant activity associated with the rapid
commercialisation of Mesablast’s specialist adult stem cell technology,” Mr
Spooner said.

About Mesoblast Limited:

Mesoblast Limited is an Australian biotechnology company committed to
commercialisation of novel treatments for crthopaedic conditions,
including a unique adult stem cell technology aimed at the regeneration
and repalr of bone and cartilage. Mesoblast has worldwide exclusive rights
to a series of patents and technologies that have been developed over
more than 10 years relating to the Identification, extraction and culture of
adult Mesenchymal Precursor Cells (MPCs). The company has also t
acquired a substantial interest in Angioblast Systems Inc, an American ‘
company developing the platform MPC technology for the treatment of
cardiovascular diseases, including repair and regeneration of blood vessels
and heart muscle. Mesoblast's strategy Is to maximise shareholder value
through both corperate partnerships and rapid product

commercialisation. '

For further Information, please contact.

Julie Meldrum

Corporate Communications Director . ‘
Mesoblast Limited , i
T: + 61 {03) 9639 6036 or +61 (0} 419 228 128 ’
E: julle.meldrum@mesoblast.com

W www mesoblast.com

Level 49, 55 Colling Strest Melboume Victora 3000 AUSTRALIA t +61 3 6639 6036 f +61 39639 6030 www.moosobiast.com ABN 68 109 431 870 ACM 108 431 870




Appendix 4D

Mesoblast Limited
ABN 68 109 431 870
Half year report
Current reporting period Half yeer ended 31 December 2006
Previous corresponding period Half year endzd 31 December 2005

Resglts for announcement to the marhet

AS 000

EXPLANATION '
I
|
Total revenues up 25% 1o 1,102
l
Loss from ordinary activitics after tax attributable up 38% to 3,996
to members
Net loss for the period attributable to members up 8% to 3,996
f
|
EXPLANATION i
|
i
Dividends (distributions) Amount per Franked amOl:.lm
security per security
Interim dividend NIL NIL [
Previous corresponding period NIL NIL |
|
Record date for determining entitlements to the dividend N/A |
: |
2006 2005

Net tangible asset per security 22.4c 16.9¢
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MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN 68 108 431 870

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Your Diractors prasent their raport on the company at the end of the half-year endad 31 Decembar 2008.
1 DIRECTORS

The following persons were Directors of Mesoblast Limited during the whole of the half-ysar and up to the
date of this report.

Michael Spoortar (Executive Chalrman)

Sivu ttescu (Director and Chief Sdentific Advisor)
Donal O'Dwyer {Non Executive Director and Deputy Chalrman) !
Byron McAllistar (Non Executiva Director) -

2 RE\;IEW OF OPERATIONS

Mesoblast is focused upon bringing to market a safe, high profit margin, off the sheif adull stem cal product
for the eflective treatmenl of a broad range of orthopaedic conditions. In addition, Mesoblast holds a
significant Interest in United States-based adull stem celf company, Anpiobiast Systems Inc, which g
focused on commercialising the sama platform stem cell technology for tha treatment of card:wascmar
dlseasns.

b

In the slx months to 31 December 2008 your Directors wara dalighled with progress made.

{
The Company has achleved a number of critical milegtones during the pericd, including: |}
- A successful Investigational New Drug (IND) submission to the United States Food and Drug
‘Administration (FDA);
- Positive results from clinical and pre-clinical trals; and
- Granting of a key patent in the United Statas,

1
The major highlight occurred on 18 December 2006 when Mesoblast received clearance from the FDA to
commence a Phase 2 Clinical Trial for spinal fusion In the Uniled States. FDA clearance was received within
30 days of the Company's filing s IND applcation, demonstrating the strength and robustness of tha data
package submilted by the Company. tmportantly, the IND submission and dearance were key milestona
targats outlined in the company's IPO Prospectus in December 2004, and wera accomplished over 6 months
ahead of schedule.

FDA Clearance Vatldates Technology Milestones And Underpins Product Commerciallsation
In order to commercialise our products in the world's largest healih care markat, the United States, we must
receive FDA clgarances for clinical trials and ultimataly approval of safoty and efficacy endpoints for product
sales. Our FDA submission in November 2008 contained datailad resulls of our product manufacturing and
scale-up procasses, our large animal studies, and our pilod dinical trials. FDA clearance on 18 Dacembaer
2008 to begin Phase 2 dinical trials entailed a comprehensive raview of all data that had been accurnulatsd
over the past two years In respect of our manufacturing processes, the safety endpeints folowing cell
implantation In patients and animals, and the effactveness of the therapy to support progressing to larger
human trials.

Clinical And Preclinical Mitostones

Thets has been an engrmous amount of hard work undertaken over the past two years by Company staff,

management and our confractors in réspect to each of the following components. Spedifically: |

. Wa have successafully accomplished large scale manufacture of a wall characlerised, uniform, and safs
oft the shalf stern call produd. This product is ganerated using our propriatary procass through large
scale expansion of stemn cells obtained from one donor for the treatment of as many as thousands of
untralated (alogenale) patiants with various orthopaedic conditions,

We have succassfully completed a number of large animal preclinical trials, demonsirating that our
allogeneic stem cells are very effective for inducing bone growth in various Indications such as spinsl
fusion and long bona defects.

- Wa have substantially prograssed two clinleal frials in Australia avaluating the safety and feasibility of
e Company's Standard Operating Procadures and cell implantation in patients with orthopaedic and
cardiovascular conditions. Quring the period under review your company reported periodically on some
extremely exciting progress made to date in these trials; while formal conclusion of both pilot trials Is at
the sole discretion of the principal Investigators, the Directors believe that Mesoblast's objectives in
establishing the safety and Standard Operating Procedures for Implanting our propriatary stem cefls in'2
clinical setting have already been accomplished. !#




MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN 68 109 431 870

tnteliactual Proparty
Patents are the Kfeblood of the Company, and granting of patents In various furisdiclions protect our
commerdal rights and ensure we have freadom lo operate commercially. The company is absohumely
committed to the ongoing exparnsion, breadening, and development of our intellectual proparty portfolio. |

‘
On 18 October 2006, Mesoblast announced that the United States Patent and Trage Mark Office (USPTO)
had granted a key palent covering composition-of-matier aver a unique population of adult stem cells which
wa refer to as Mesenchymal Precursar Cells or MPCs. Thase cells anable regeneration and repair of a host
of tissues including bone, cartlags, fat, blood vessels and heart muscle. The patent confers rights through at
least the year 2016 and will underpin our exclusive rights to commercialise MPC products in the world’s
largest haalth sector market.

Funding Our Future

In July 2006 the company successfully undertook a placement of shares to institutional and sophisticated
investors raiging $15 million. This was folowed by a Share Purchase Plan in August 2006 which enabled
axisting sharehoiders to invest Individually up to $5,000 at a price per ehara equivalent to the July placement.
In total $17_17 million was raised fo fund two dlinical trials and ongolng operations.

Further Investmeont In Angloblast Systams inc |
in November 2008 independent shareholders voted in faver of a further investment of $8.5 million in total by
way of periodic payments to secure in total a shareholding of 39.2% on 3 fully diluted basis. The Intention o!
this investmant is to fund an agreed cardiovascular Phase Il Clinlcal Trial in the United States. :
Detaiis assoda!sd with the further investment are set out in the company's website and were dreulated to ail
eligible sharehclders prior to the meeting and are available on www.maschlast. com !

1
The terms of the further invastment in summary provide for pariodic payments to Anglobiast that will be used
in achleving clinical triai milestones.

. i
Your Directars continue to closely monitor the progress of Angioblast and continue to be confident in an
ongolng, productive and strong relationship between the two companies.

Commerciai Partnerships and Opportunities
Both Mesoblast and Angioblast have established successful collaborative relationships with major device

, and pharmacautical organisations in the axecution of praciinical and climica) trials. These relationships have

focused on ways to optimise delivery of our cells in the treatment of orthopaexdic and cardiovascular diseases
using camriers and davices that are today commonly used by physicians. The resulls have enabled both
companles to develop strang and compelling portfolios upon which strateglc partnerships ¢an be cemented,
With FDA clearance to move inlp each additionat Phase 2 clinical trial, the partnering opportunifies for each
comparry will continua to expand.

Financial Results !
Tha results of the company for the six months to 31 December 2008 are summarised below: i

Mezoblast’s net loss aftar tax for the six months to 31 December 2008 was $3.095872 whilst the
comparathe figure for the six months to 31 Decamber 2005 was $2,883,547. The increased nat loss dnrediy
relatas to the increase in activity and operations of the company in achieving its core milestones.

Revenue for the period was $1,101,778 as compared to $883,588. Increases in funds from an Australian
Government Grant and Interest Income accounted for the increased revenuas whilst forsign currency gains
reducad. .

In ine with accounting standards, all Research and Development costs wers iImmediately expensed in the
pariod in which they ware incurrad, During the current period ta 31 Decamber 2008 these costs amountad fo
$3,312,905 as compared to $1,736,718 lor the corresponding period in 2005. The increase is directy
attributable to incraaaed activity during the paricd. Mesoblast's expandihurs is ip fine with its budget I

Mesoblast's share of losses in s equity accounted associzte, Angloblast Systems Inc, was $542,829 in the
& month period to 31 December 2008 compared with $807,243 for the same period In the previous year. The
varianca was mainly dug to Angloblast Systems In¢. incuring up front contract costs in the 6 months to 31
December 2005, Angioblast Systems Inc.'s expenditure is in line with Its budget. i




MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN 68 109 431 870

|
|
|
!

General and Administration costs as wall as intorest expenses wore $1,242,014 at 3t December 2008 aé
compared to 81,223,171 for the correspanding period In 2005. In ling with the company’s expactations thasa
costs have not matarialty changed.

|
Mesoblast's cash balanca and term deposits amounted to $15,716,040 as compared to $15,083,834. The
Direciors beliove that there are sufficient funds an hand to meet the company’s immediate objectives.

3 EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TC 31 DECEMBER 2006

i

I

1
In the pericd betwaan 31 December 2006 and tha date of this repori the company made no announcements
that are material to this Report.

4 AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION i
I

A copy of the Audltor's independenca daclaration a3 required under Section 307C of the Corporations Act

2001 accompanias this report.

This report is mada in accordanca with the resolution of tha Directors,

Michael Spagner

Executive Chaiman

Melbourna, Victorla

Dated this 20th day of February 2007




Chartered Accountants
& Bustness Advisers

20 February 2007

The Direclors

Mesoblast Limited

Level 39

55 Coliins Street
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

As lead engagement partner for the review of Mesoblast Limited for the half-year ended 31 December

2006 | declare that, to the best of my knowledge and bellef, there have been:

(a) no contraventions of the independence requirements of the Corporations Act in relation to the

review; and

(b)  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in retation to the reviiew.

Dear Directors
\
|

JKE JUUN S E—

|

} .

| PKF R A Dean
| Chartered Accountants Partner

|

Tel: +61 3 9603 1700 | Fax; +61 3 9602 3870 | www.pki.com.au

Victortan Partnership | ABN 56 627 914 493

Leve! 11, CGU Tower | 485 La Trobe Street | Melboume | Victoriz 3000 | Australia
GPO Box 5099 | Melbgume | Victoria 3001

!
i

i




MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN 68 109 431 870
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

I
1
i

HaH Year Half Yaar
X endod ended |
31-Dac-06 31-Doc-05
H $

| |

Revenues :
Government Grant 598 157 473.!?96
Interest 490,137 327 .5?43
Foreign Exchange Gain on US Dollar Deposit 15482 82,347
Total revenues 1,101,776 883,586

Expensas

Research & Devalopment (3312905 (1 .738,7"19)
Administration (1.242,014) {1 .113.0?9)
Interast expansas . (1 0.0?2)
Share of losses of Equity accounted associates {542,528) (807.243)
Tolal expenses (5.007.748)  (3,767.133)
Loss before incoma tax axpense {3,985,972) (2.583.51{!7)
Incoma tax (axpense)/benefit | -
Loss for the period {3,985,972) (2,883,547)

Earning per shara: |

: !
Basic eamings per share (cants per share) {3.79¢) (3.08c}

E
Basic diluted earnings per share (cents per share) {3.79c) (3.08c)

Tha accompanyling notea farm part of these financial statements




MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN £8 109 431 870
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY '
FOR THE HALF-YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2005

Shara Option  Accumulated y

KOTE lasued Capital Rasarve Logses Total
$ $ S $
Opening Balance as at 1 July 2005 20,687,608 65,517 {1,470.369) 19,262,758
issued capital 4 - - -
Loss for the pariod - - (2,883,547) {2,883,54T)
Cost of share based payment - 150,847 . ! 150,647
At 31 Dacember 2005 20,687 808 218,164 (4,353,916) 16,520,858
As of 1 July 2006 20,667,808 1,068,393 (8,768,058} 11,965,045
Issued capital 4 16,710,375 - . ?6.710.315
Loszs for the period - - (3,895,972 {3,995,972)
Cost of shara based payment - 230,035 | 230035
Al 31 Dacember 2008 37,377,083 1,206,428 {13,764.928) 24,900,483

The above stabemant of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes




MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN 68 109 431 870
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2006

NOTE

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Trade & Other Receivables

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and aquipment

Investmani accounted far using equity method
Intanglbles assats

TOTAL NON-CLURRENT ABSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade & Other Payablas

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issugd Capital 4
Reserves

Accumulated losses

TOTAL EQUITY

The accomparlying hotes form part of these financial statemants.

31-Doc06  30-Jun-D

$ s |

|
15,718,040 7,854,843
1,080,809 184,470
16,612,648 039,313
57,107 37,805
7,058,844 7,501;,673
808,603 805,624
8,825,844 8,345,202
25,638,453 16,354,515
728.010 4,418,470
726,010 4,419,470
728,010 4,419,470
24,909,483 11,065,045

|
37,377,883 20,667,608
1.296 428 1.061'3.393
{13,764,028)  (9,768,958)
24,008,483 11,885,045

|




ABN 88 109 431 870
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

‘ MESOBLAST LIMITED
i FOR THE HALF-YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2006
|

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments to suppliers and employess
Interest recaived

|

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in patents & licenses

Invastment in aquity accourdad assodiate
Investment in plant and equipment

Loan to assoclate company

Others

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issue of shares

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash held
Foraign axchange gain on US Dollar Daposit
Cash & Cash Equivalents at baginning of pericd

Cash & Cash Equivalents a1 and of period

Half Year Half Year
endad ondod'
31-Dac-06 31-060.—?5
$ $ l

|
(5,076,451) (2.309.3]42)
450,137 A27,543
(5485,314) (1,881,789)
i
i
(21,862) (so.slos)
(3.000,000)  (1,000,000)
{28 272) -
{212,630) (75.6|82)
. 4,400
(3,262,564)  (1,132,001)
|
18,809,075 | .
16,808,075 |-
7,881,187 (3.1 13‘?90)
- 82.:]147
7,854,843 15,093,534
15,716,040 12,082,201

The accampanying notes form part of thesa financial statements

|
|
|

|
!
|
!




MESOBLAST LIMITED i
ABN 68 109 431 870
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Note 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES f
i
The half-year financial report is a general purpose financlal report which has been prepared in actondanca with
Australian Actounting Standarde and the Corporations Act 2001 and AASB 134 “intarim Finangial Reporting™.

Compllance with AASE 134 ensures the sams accounting policies have been followed as those applied in the financial
report for the yaar enced 30 June 2006, [

Basis of preparation
The financial repart has bean prepared on the basis of historical cost, excapt for the revaluation of certain non-current

assats and financial instruments, cost Is based on the fair values of the considaration given in axchange of assats. Al
amounis arg presented in Australian delars unless otherwise nated

Ll
|
Note 2: EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENT ’
'

Balance Principat
Nzmo of Entity Date Activity Ownership Interast Carmrying Amount
31 Decamber 30 Juna 31 Docamber 30 June
2G06 2008 2008 2008
Angioblast Systems
Inc 30 Juna Stem cell research 34.3% 32.3% 7,858,844 7.501.6‘{3
’ |
i
Investment in asgsoclate account using equity method 10,782,791 9.782.??1
Share of equity accounted loss ' (2,823.047)  (2,281,118)
Carrying amount of equity accounted investment 7,858,844 7,501,673

Nota 3: INTANGIBLE ASSETS |
) ]
31 Decombar 30 Juna

2008 2008
$ $
Intetlectuat pmpe:‘ty establishmeant and flcenses at cost 877,101 855439
Leds: Amortisation (67.498) {48.815)

809,603 805,824




MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN 68 169 431 870
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

Note 4: CONTRIBUTED EQUITY !

4 a) Movernenis in contributad equity during the half year were as follows: - }

31 Docember 31 Docetnber 30 June 30 Juna
2006 2008 2008 2008
No. s No. s |
|
At the beginning of the reporting period . 93,510,000 20,667,608 93,510,000 20,687 808
13,882,800 shares alotted at $1.25 13,882,800 17,353,500 . .
175,333 oplions exercised at $0.85 175,333 113,966 - -
80,000 cptions exercised at $0.60 | 80,000 48,000
Share issue expenses - (805,001) -
At the end of the reporting pariod 107,648,133 37,377,983 93,510,000 20,667,608
4 b) Shara options

31 Dacamber 30 June |

2008 2008
No. Ro. [
Balance at beginning of the half year 7,800,000 5,660,000
Granted during the hatf yaar - 150,000 2,140,000
Exorcisad during the half year (255,333) -
Lapsed during the half year - i
Balance al end of the half year 7,694,667 7,800,000
i
Option - Series Number Vesting date Expiry date Exercise price L
$
1
Granted 29 September 2004 4,320,000 25/0072005 29/06/2008 0.55 !
Granted 28 October 2004 400,000 18/12/2007 30/12/2007 0.55 i
Granted 18 Dacamber 2004 80,000 18122008 16/12/2007 0.60 )
Granted 18 Dacember 2004 80,000 16/12/2007 16/12/2008 0.60 |
Grantod 16 Decamber 2004 . 700,000 1611272006 16/12/2008 0.60 |
Granted 25 August 2005 350,000 31/12r2005 3111212008 0.65
Granted 25 August 2005 350,000 30/06/2008 30A08/2008 0.65
Granted 23 February 2008 0,000 01/04/2007 01/04/2008 0.60 !
Granted 23 February 2008 0,000 01/04/2008 01/04/2009 0.60 !
Granted 23 February 2008 80,000 01/04/2008 01/04/2007 0.65 |
Granted 23 February 2008 150,000 30/06/2005 . D1D4/2007 0.65 |
Granted 23 February 20068 166,667 30/06/2008 30/06/2007 (.65 |
Granted 23 February 2008 48,000 234022006 23/02/2008 0,70 !
Granted 23 February 2008 100,000 1410212007 14/02/2010 0.70 t
Granted 23 February 20068 150,000 30/06/2007 D1/04/2008 1.20 !
Cranted 23 February 2008 200,000 3062007 30/08/2008 1.20 :
Gianted 23 February 2008 150,000 3010672008 01/04/2009 1.20
Granted 23 Fehruary 20068 200,000 30/06/2008 30/06/2069 1.20
Granted 23 November 2008 150,000 23/11/2006 23/1172008 0.65
7,694 687




MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN €9 108 431 870
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE HALF-YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Hots 5: SEGMENT INFORMATION
(2} Description of Segments

The company operates in two business segments, baing commarclalisation and investment In research and
development companies.

{b) Geographic Segments

The company predominantly oparates in ong geographical area, being Austratia.

Research &
Development Investment (a) Corporate Tatal
BUSINESS SEGMENTS 2006 2006 2008 2005 2008 2005 2008 '2005

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Segment Revenus from * i

Continuing Operations 598 474 - - 508 410 1,102

Segment Resulls ) 2717)  (1,263) {543} (807) (738) {814) (3,068) (2.884)
t
f

(a) Represents Equity

accoustted losees - Angioblasat

NOTE 6: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

i
0On 23 November 2008 the shargholders al an Extraordinary General Meeting considered and passed the following |
resolufion — “that pursuant to ASX Listing Rule 10.1, Chapter 2E of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and for alt other
purposes approval is granted for the Company to invest up to $8.5 milllon in additional funds to subscribe for up to
425 000 further preferenca shares (designated “Series B Preferred”) in Angloblast Systams Inc.”

In fine with agreements entarad into with Angioblast Systems Inc. an amount of $1 million was paid on 11 December
2008. Further quarterty payrments will be mada up to a total of $2 million for the period to 30 Juna 2008.

The remaining payment of $5.5 milllon will be paid in instaiments upon reaching major clinical milsstones for an
agread Phase {I clinical trial.




MESOBLAST LIMITED
ABN 68 109 431 870

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of directors of Mesoblast Limited, . |

In the apinion of the diractors:

(a) the mccompanying firancial statements and notes are in accordance vwﬂ;
Corporations Act 2001 and comptly with the accounting standards and give a trug and
fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 December 2006 and of its
perfarmanca for the half year ended on that date.

f
(b At the date of this declaration there are reasonable grounds to believe that the
company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resclution of the Board of Directors dated the 20" day of February 2007,

- il el oo

Mr Michael Spooner
Director

Melbourne




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT ) .
TO THE MEMBERS OF MESOBLAST LIMITED Chartarad Accountants
& Business Advieizers
]

Report on the Half-Year Financlal Report

We have reviewed the accompanying half-year financial report of Mesoblast Limited, which comprises the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, the income staternent, statement of changes in equity and cash
flow statement for the half year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting polices, other
selacted explanatory notes and the directors’ daclaration. .

Diracfors’ Responsibility for the Half-Year Financial Report '

t

The directors of Mesoblast Limited are respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the half-year
financial report in accordance with Austrafian Accounting Standard AASB134 Interim Financlal Reporting
and the Comorations Act 2001. This responsibilily includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the half-year financial report that is free
from materal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accountmg
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. ,

Auditor's Responsibifity ‘

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the half-year financial report based on our review. We
conducted our review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2410 Review
of an Interim Financial Report Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity, in order lo statelwhether,
on the basis of the procedures described, we have become aware of any matter that makes us believe that
the financiat report is not in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including: giving a true and fair view
of Mescblast Limited's financlat position as at 31 December 2006 and its performance for the half-year
ended on that date; and complying with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and the
Corporations Regulations 2001. |

As the auditor of Mesoblast Limlied, ASRE 2410 requires that we comply with the ethical reqr}liremenls
relevant to the audit of the annual financial report, |

A review of a half-year financial report consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons respon5|ble for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A rev:ew is
substantially less in scope than an audlt conducted In accordance with Australlan Auditing Standards and
consequently does not enable us to oblain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. .

Indapendence |

in conducting our review, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001.

!
Conclusion

Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any matter that makes us believe
that the half-year financial report of Mesoblast Limited is not in accordance with the Corporatrons Act 2001
including:

(@)  giving a true and fair view of Mesoblast Limited's financial position as at 31 December 2006 and of its
performance for the half-year ended on that date; and 1

“{b) complying with Accounting Standard AASB 134 Interim Financial Reporting and Corporaﬂons

Regulations 2001. l
4 JUAN L
’ 1
PKF R A Dean
Chartered Accountants Partner I
{
20 February 2007
Melbourne

Tel: +81 3 9603 1700 | Fax; +61 3 8602 3870 | www.pki.com.au

Victorian Parinarship | ABN 58 527 914 483

Lavet 11, CGU Tower | 485 La Trobe Street | Melbourne | Victorla 3000 | Australla
GPO Box 5099 { Melboume | Victoria 3001
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BNP PARIBAS

i BECURITIES SERVICES

Date: 9-Feb-07

The Manager
Listings Department
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

No. of Pages (incl). 3
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL HOLDER
Dear SirfMadam,

Pursuant to Section 6718 of the Corporations Law, AMP Limited hereby advises of a change in its
relavant interest in Mesoblasl Limited.

Tha enclosed ASIC Form 604 discloses all required details.

Yours faithfully,

Justin Christopher

Head of Custody

BNP Paribas Securities Services
Phone: 02 8222 0029

BNP PARIBAS FUND SERVICES AUSTRALASLA PTY LTD
Lovet & 00 Castloroegh Strecl Sydeey NBW 2000 Austraiia
PG BOX R209 Royal Exchange NGW 1225 Austratia

Ted: +01 2 0222 0000 - Fax: +81 2 5222 0255

ABN T Q2 655 674




Form 604

Corporations Law
Section 671B
Notice of Changa of Intarests of Substantial Holder

To:

ACNIARSN:

Masoblast Limited

109 431 870

1. Dataits of subsatantial hoider

Name:

AMP Limited ACN 078 354 519 and ita relaled bodies corporate.

There was 3 change in the Interests of the substantial holder on
The pravious notica was given Lo the company on

The previaus notice was dated

2, Previous and present voling power

08-Feb-2007
09-Fab-2007
11Jan-2007

Tha e nunibar of voles attached ko &l the voting shares in the company of voling Interests In the
schama that the subetantial haldar or an aesociata had & relavant interest In when tast requived,
and when now required, to give a substantial helding notice to tha company or schema, are 3 foliows!

Pravious nolica Prase: notice
Cinss of sacurtias Parson’s voles Voting power Person s volez Veling power ]
[Fully Paid Crdinary 6,200,648 | 5T6% 11200648 | 10.40%
3. Changes in relevant interosts
Particudars of each changa in, or changa in the nature of, relevant interests of the substantal holdar
or 3n associata In voting securities of the company sincg the substantial heider was last required to
give & substantial holding notice to the compeny of scheme e as follows:
.- I
Parson whose relovant Caonsideration glven in Ciass and number | Parson & votas
Date of change interast changad Nature of change relation to change of shares affectsd |affected |
Fully Paid Ordinan I
8-Feb07 AMP Lifes Limited Share acquisition $3.749,374 57 1,740 .067] 1.740.067]
Cogent Nomineas Pty Fully Paid Orcinany |
8-Feb-07 Limited Share aoquisition $1.423,198.85 £60.5 t44 580,614
Cogent Nomineas Pty Fully Paid Orctnany |
{8-Feb-07 Umited <SMP Accounts> |Share acquisiion $2,199.341.54 1,020,704 1,020,704
Pully Paid Orcinary !
8-Feb-07 Equipsunar Share acquisition $305.409.91 183,645 183.645)
Fully Paid Ortinany '
8-Feb07 LAME Share acquisition $335.935.08| 155.937] 155.837]
Stata Authority Fully Paid Ordinary )
8-Feb-07 Superannuation Schema _|Share acquisttion $1.638,333.26) 713.005 713,00
Fully Pald Ordmany I
8-Feb07 UniSuper Limitad Share aoquésition $1.133.879. 76 526,228 528224
4. Prezent relevant interasts l
Particutars of each relevand interest of the substantial holder In voting securilties afler tha change ara as follows: i
I
Registered holder of Peraon ealitied o be Class 6nd number | Person 3 volas I
Hoider of refevant Interest securiles regisiered as holder | Naturs of refovant interest of secunties affected !
AMP Lifa Limited AMP Life Linvuted [AMP Life Limited AMP Life Is entitted to be | Fully Pala 4753268
the registerad haldar of the |OrdEnary: 4.763.268] |
claxs and number of i
securifies lintad baside it \
navre AMP Life Umited o ar |
controtad body corperata l
of AMF Limited within the |
meaning of Section 808(3} [
of tha Corporations Law i
|
AMP Cepital Investors Limited |Cogent Nominaga Pty Cogant Mominees Pty |AMP Capdal, In its capacity] Fully Paid 2,157,895

(AMP Capital’}

Limited <SMP Aocounts>

Limited <SMP
Accounts>

84 tha investiment manager
tfor tha persona or busts
¥sied besides iis neme,
has the pawer 1o control
voting arxiior the disposal
of cacurities. AMP Capital
is 3 controlied body |
corporate of AMP Limited
within the meanéng of
Saction 608(3) of the

Ordinary: 2,157,884

Corporstions Law

Fudy Paid¢
Cedénary: 880.514

660.514
i

Fully Paig

Ordinary: 1.350.529'

1.350.529
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Avatralla Limited Superannuation Ordinary: 713,005 | [
Scheme

Natonal Nominaas Pty Equigsupar Fully Pald 1.036.200

Umited ' Orcinary: 1,039,209

Nationsl Nomires Pty |UniSuper Linitad Fuly Pald 526.220

Limited Ordinary: 526,228 |
o ~Fotar 11,200,648

5. Changa In asseclation
The persans who have become associatas of, ceased o be asseclaies of, or have changad Lthe nature
of thekr association with. the subsiantial sharshcider in relation to voling interests In the company or schemée are as follows:

Narne and ACN Natura of association
‘Mo Chenges

6. Addresaes
The addresses of parsons named in this form are aa follows:

Name Addrass

AMP Lifa Umited Lavel 24, 33 Alfred Straet, Sydnay NSW 2000

AME Capiial Investors Limited Lavel 22, 33 Alfred Straat, Sydney NSW 2000 I
Cogant Nominsas Pty Limiad Lovat 6, 80 Castiereagh Straat, Sydnay NSW 2000

Equipsuper 171 Finiders Sireet, Matboume VIC 3000

JP Morgan Nomineas Australia Umited 259 Goorga Street, Sydney NSW 2000

National Nominees Pty Limited 271 Colins Street. Malboume VIC 300¢ '
Stata Authonity Superannuation Scheme Lavet 14, 63 Clarence Street, Sydney NSW 2000 i
Unisuper Limited Lavet 28, 367 Collins Street, Melbouwrne 3000

Thhmﬁmdd\mdmmresudmhdwmsmF«mm&)mz;nga'alnmal.




STANDARD §2-O%7<7
&POOR'S | |
Press Release

Standard & Poor’s Announces March Quarterly Rebatance to the
S&P/ASX Indices

Sydney, March 2, 2007 - Standard & Poor’s Index Services, the leading provider olf equity
indices in Australia, announces that effective close of trade March 16, 2007, the foilowmg
constituent additions and deletions will take place in the S&P/ASX indices. l

ADDITIONS

BBP BABCOCK & BROWN POWER

REMOVALS |

RIC RIDLEY CORPORATION LIMITED |
|

R T e e

|

ADDITIONS |

BBP BABCOCK & BROWN POWER o

ABP ABACUS PROPERTY GROUP

FXL FLEXIGROUP LIMITED

AEZ APN/UKA EUROPEAN RETAIL TRUST

DI CHALLENGER DIVERSIFIED PROPERTY GROUP

AOE ARROW ENERGY NL

NXS NEXUS ENERGY LIMITED

CBH CBH RESOURCES LIMITED |

CIF CHALLENGER INFRASTRUCTURE FUND |

BEC BECTON PROPERTY GROUP

OKN OAKTON LIMITED

ILF ING REAL ESTATE COMMUNITY LIVING FUND GROUP

GIT GALILEO JAPAN TRUST |

BVA BRAVURA SOLUTIONS LIMITED ‘

CDU CUDECO LIMITED |

www.standardandpoors.com.au



MMX MURCHISON METALS LIMITED

AZA ANZON AUSTRALIA LIMITED

IWL . IWL LIMITED

CTO CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED
RCYCA RIVERCITY MOTORWAY GROUP
AGS ALLIANCE RESOURCES LIMITED
TRS THE REJECT SHOP LIMITED

DYL DEEP YELLOW LIMITED
REMOVALS

ANE AUSPINE LIMITED

AV] AVJENNINGS LIMITED

SGL SYDNEY GAS LTD

HPX HPAL LIMITED

CAA CAPRAL ALUMINIUM LIMITED

PSD PSIVIDA LIMITED }
AHS ATLAS GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
STG STAGING CONNECTIONS GROUP LIMITED
GDY GEODYNAMIC LIMITED

MXI MAXITRANS INDUSTRIES LIMITED
IN IINET LIMITED

CUE | CUE ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED
IGD IAMGOLD CORPORATION

VLL VILLAGE LIFE LTD

ADDITIONS

BBP BABCOCK & BROWN POWER

FXL FLEXIGROUP LIMITED

cDi CHALLENGER DIVERSIFIED PROPERTY GROUP
GJT GALILEO JAPAN TRUST

BVA BRAVURA SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Cbu CUDECO LIMITED

AGM ALLEGIANCE MINING NL

MMX MURCHISON METALS LIMITED

CTO CITIGOLD CORPORATION LIMITED
RCYCA RIVERCITY MOTORWAY GROUP

AGS - ALLIANCE RESOURCES LIMITED

TRS THE REJECT SHOP LIMITED

DYL DEEP YELLOW LIMITED

MCQ MACQUARIE CAPITAL ALLIANCE GROUP
PMM PORTMAN LIMITED

CMW CROMWELL GROUP

EWC ENERGY WORLD CORPORATION LTD
EBB EVEREST BABCOCK & BROWN LIMITED
AEP ALLCO EQUITY PARTNERS LIMITED
HFA HFA BOLDINGS LIMITED

WTP WATPAC LIMITED

CPR CLIVE PEETERS LIMITED

OAK OAKS HOTELS & RESORTS LIMITED
JML JABIRU METALS LIMITED

PFL PATTIES FOODS LIMITED

CFU JCERAMIC FUEL CELLS LIMITED




AAX
AED
BGD
GBG
RIV
LRF
RCR
HZN
PLA
MBR
HER
EMI

AVE
DWS
MBN
PMA
AUB
IPN
RRT
MLB
GMI
CPK
KMN
FXR
NOD
AVO
ARR
RIT
MFT
MSB
LYC
EZL
KAR
VIR
MAFCA
EQT
SPH
AIM
CuO
REX
CIL
NFL
MAE
GRR
MPS
RHL
PFG
LFE
VKI
BLP
MPY
TZN

GAA
CNB

AUSENCO LIMITED

AED OIL LIMITED

BOULDER STEEL LIMITED
GINDALBIE METALS LTD
RIVERSDALE MINING LIMITED
LINQ RESOURCES FUND

RCR TOMLINSON LIMITED ‘
HORIZON OIL LIMITED

PLATINUM AUSTRALIA LIMITED
MARINER BRIDGE INVESTMENTS LIMITED
HERALD RESOURCES LIMITED

EMITCH LIMITED l
MINERAL RESOURCES LIMITED I
AEVUM LIMITED :
DWS ADVANCED BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LIMITED
MIRABELA NICKEL LIMITED

PRECIOUS METALS AUSTRALIA LIMITED
AUSTBROKERS HOLDINGS LIMITED
INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER NETWORK LTD
RECORD REALTY

MELBOURNE IT LIMITED

GLOBAL MINING INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CP1 LIMITED

KINGS MINERALS NL

FOX RESOURCES LIMITED

NOMAD BUILDING SOLUTIONS LIMITED

AVOCA RESOURCES LIMITED

ARASOR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

RUBICON JAPAN TRUST

MEFS DIVERSIFIED GROUP

MESOBLAST LIMITED

LYNAS CORPORATION LIMITED

EUROZ LIMITED

KAROON GAS AUSTRALIA LIMITED

VIRIDIS CLEAN ENERGY GROUP

MULTIPLEX ACUMEN PRIME PROPERTY FUND
EQUITY TRUSTEES LIMITED

SPHERE INVESTMENTS LIMITED

AIM RESOURCES LIMITED

COPPERCO LIMITED

REGIONAL EXPRESS HOLDINGS LIMITED
CENTREBET INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
NATURAL FUEL LIMITED

MARION ENERGY LIMITED

GRANGE RESOURCES LIMITED
MACARTHURCOOK PROPERTY SECURITIES FUND
RURALCO HOLDINGS LIMITED

PRIME FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

LIFE THERAPEUTICS LIMITED

VIKING INDUSTRIES LIMITED

BABCOCK & BROWN RESIDENTIAL LAND PARTNERS GROUP
MFS LIVING AND LEISURE GROUP

TERRAMIN AUSTRALIA LIMITED

MACMIN SILVERLTD

GENEPHARM AUSTRALASIA LIMITED

CANBERRA INVESTMENT CORPORATION LIMITED




PVE PO VALLEY ENERGY LIMITED

NCK NICK SCALI LIMITED

REMOVALS

VLL VILLAGE LIFELTD

CUE CUE ENERGY RESOURCES LIMITED

MXI MAXITRANS INDUSTRIES LIMITED

AHS ATLAS GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

STG STAGING CONNECTIONS GROUP LIMITED
PME PRO MEDICUS LIMITED

CWT CHALLENGER WINE TRUST

GTG GENETIC TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

SAQ SYDNEY ATTRACTIONS GROUP LIMITED
PAY PAYCE CONSOLIDATED LIMITED

OCL OBJECTIVE CORPORATION LIMITED

BDS BRIDGESTONE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

WAM WAM CAPITAL LIMITED

NCI NATIONAL CAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED

HIC HUNTLEY INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
ARA ARIADNE AUSTRALIA LIMITED

ACR ACRUX LIMITED

ESV ESERVGLOBAL LIMITED

CHQ CHIQUITA BRANDS SOUTH PACIFIC LIMITED
ACL ALCHEMIA LIMITED

HNG HGL LIMITED

CLH COLLECTION HOUSE LIMITED

TZL TZ LIMITED

GLB GLOBE INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

ALR ABERDEEN LEADERS LIMITED

ROK ROCK BUILDING SOCIETY (THE)

SDI - SDILIMITED

QCH QUEENSLAND COTTON HOLDINGS LIMITED
AZZ ANTARES ENERGY LIMITED

SFC SCHAFFER CORPORATION LIMITED

AGI AINSWORTH GAME TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
CIX CALLIDEN GROUP LIMITED

MST METAL STORM LIMITED

GFD GREEN’S FOODS LIMITED

CDF COMMONWEALTH DIVERSIFIED SHARE FUND
UNW UNWIRED GROUP LIMITED

ORL OROTONGROUP LIMITED

SPL STARPHARMA HOLDINGS LIMITED

WFL WILLMOTT FORESTS LIMITED

IBC IRONBARK CAPITAL LIMITED

GAP GALE PACIFIC LIMITED

ADG ADTRANS GROUP LIMITED

CMK CUMNOCK COAL LIMITED

CLT CELLNET GROUP LIMITED

IDT INSTITUTE OF DRUG TECHNOLOGY AUSTRALIA LIMITED
MOS MOSAIC OIL NL :

LiP LIPA PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

CDX CDS TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

EOS ELECTRO OPTIC SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
SYM SYMEX HOLDINGS LIMITED

NLX NYLEX LIMITED




DRA DRAGON MINING LIMITED

CGX CGA MINING LIMITED

AAT AUTRON CORPORATION LIMITED -

EON ESPREON LIMITED

LCL LIGHTING CORPORATION LIMITED

MXL MXL LIMITED

PPK PPK LIMITED

DKS DANKS HOLDINGS LIMITED

BSO BASS STRAIT OIL TRUST

CMQ CHEMEQ LIMITED |

NAL NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED ' |
Company additions to and deletions from a Standard & Poor’s index do not in a:ny way
reflect an opinion on the investment merits of the company. Information about the S&P/ASX
index methodology is available at www.standardandpoots.com.

About Standard & Poor’s

Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies (NYSE:MHP), is the world's
foremost provider of financial market intelligence, including independent credit! ratings,
indices, risk evaluation, investment research and data. With approximately 7,500 employees,
mcluding wholly owned affiliates, located in 21 countries and markets, Standard & Poor’s is
an essential part of the world's financial infrastructure and has played a leading role for more
than 140 years in providing investors with the independent benchmarks they need to feel
more confident about their investment and financial decisions. For more information, visit

http://www standardandpoors.com.au |

For more information contact:
Simon Karaban, Index Services Sharon Beach, Media !
Tel (61) 2 9255 9870 Te] (61)3 9631 2152 ‘
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MESOBLAST'S ROAD TO UNITED STATES
PRODUCT REGISTRATION

Melbourne, Australla; 7 March 2007: Australia's adult stem cell company,
Mesablast Limited (ASX:MSB; USOTC:MBLTY), today provided investors with a
timetable and update of proposed clinical programs leading to product
registration in the United States, the world's largest health care market.

i
!
|
|
!
!
|!
f
I

The Phase II spinat fusion trial is due to commence by Q2 2007. The results of .
this trial will be used to support a pivotal Phase 3 clinical trial of Mesoblast's !
patented technology for splnal fusion, alming to eliminate the need for autograft:
{or patlent's own hip bone graft), reduce complications assoclated with existing
treatment regimens, and improve fusion outcomes.

Equally as important is the progress made by Mescblast's US-based sister
company, Angloblast Systems Inc; which Is focused on commercialising the same
ptatform stem cell technology for the treatment of cardiovascular diseases.

Angioblast has completed final pre-IND meetings with the FDA and, based on
these as well as ongoing discussions with potential strategic partners, 1s in final
preparations to complete its IND submission for a first cardiovascular clinical
indication by the end of this quarter. .

Angioblast will seek to be the first company to recelve FDA clearance to test
catheter-based dellvery of allogeneic (or ‘off-the-shelf’) cells in patients with
heart attacks.

In arder to commercialise our products in the United States, FDA clearances must
be received for clinical trials and ultimately approval of safety and efficacy
endpoints for product sales. Our FDA submission for a Phase 2 trial in spinal
fusion, which was cleared in December 2006, contained detailed results of our
proeduct manufacturing and scale-up processes, our large animal studies, and ou
pilot clinical trials. Its rapid clearance enables us to now map out our clinical
timelines to product registration, and consequently product commerciatisation.

=

Anticipated timelines for our cllnlcal programs are:

Q1 2007 FDA IND submission for Phase 2 trial in first cardlac application
Q2 2007 Phase 2 spinal fusion allogeneic trial begins in US

Q2 2007 Pilot Trial long bone fractures enrolment complete

Q2 2007 Pilot Trial severe coronary artery disease enrolment complete
Q3 2007 Phase 2 allogeneic trial for heart attacks begins in US

2008 Additional Phase 2 orthopaedic and cardiac trlals commence
2008 Enrolment complete in allogeneic Phase 2 trial for spinal fusion
2008 *  Enrolment complete In allogeneic Phase 2 trial for heart attacks
>2008 Pivotal/Phase 3 registration trials commence in lead orthopaedic

and cardiac indicatfons N

0 ACN 109 431 870



|
Both Mesoblast and Angioblast have already established successful collaborative|
relatlonships with major device and pharmaceutical organisations in the execution
of preclinical and clinica! trials. Progression through Phase 2 ciinical trials and on
to plvotal Phase 3 reglstration trials will serve to greatly expand and accelerate i

each company's opportunities for major strateqgic partnerships. I

About Mesoblast Limited

Mesoblast Limited (ASX:MSB/USQOTC:MBLTY) is an Australian biotechnology !
company committed to commercialisation of novel treatments for orthopaedic
conditions, including a unique adult stem cell technology aimed at the |
regeneration and repair of bone and cartilage. Mesoblast has worldwide exclusive
rights to a serles of patents and technologies that have been developed over
maore than 10 years relating to the identification, extraction and culture of adult
Mesenchymal Precursor Cells (MPCs). The company has also acquired a
substantial Interest in Anglioblast Systems Inc, an American company developing
the platform MPC technology for the treatment of cardiovascular diseases, !
inctuding repalr and regeneration of blood vessels and heart muscle. Mesoblast's
strategy Is to maximise shareholder value through both corporate partnerships
and rapid product commerclalisation.

For further information, please contact:

Julie Meldrum

Corporate Communications Director
Mesoblast Limited

T: + 61 {03) 9639 6036

M: +61 (0) 419 228 128

E: julie.meldrum@®mesoblast.com
W: www.mesoblast.com

Leve! 39, 55 Colling Street Melbourae Victorla 3000 AUSTRALIA t +61 3 8630 6036  +61 3 G630 6030 www.mogoblagt.com ASN 68 108 431 I8‘:‘0 AUN 100 431 870




* '+ United Saates Food and Orug Adrrﬁ:ﬂshrahnn (FDA) dearance uf

- product manutaciuring and scale-up processes, our large aninal studies,

FDA Clearance Positions Mesoblast
To Commercnahse Stem CeII Products

e s -

Mesob(czsl Pmsadusved & (remendous amount lnavery short Umelmm '_""'FDA clears MESObIast 5 Phase 2 climcal trlal

- and has now reachied a significant new stage of maturity characterised by .. submission . N e '.':'“

 upcoming commencement of human Phase 2 clinical triats In the United ™. " at ocou :

- States, the world's largest health care marked. 1. . 14 .. 1o . T major highlight OFWW“ q“a’le‘m““"mwew"wm
CooTTT T . when, Mesoblast received clearance of its IND submission from the FDA t°

..Ths company Is focusert upon bringing to marke! & safe. high ptoﬁt “""’95”' - commencs & Phase,2 Clinicat Triaf for spinal.fusion in the Unlted Staiss.

. Allogenelc (unrelal i the shell” cell produc! for. eﬁechve
(unrelateq or ‘off the ) adull stem . e, . FDA clearance was ceceived within 30 days of the Company’s fiiing its !ND

 reatment ot & broad range.of orthopaedic ooncrhons . : :
epplication, demonstraling the strength and robustnees otthe data ™.~

H»ghﬂghts during the final quarter of 2008 included: - pacicage submitted by the Company. tmportantly, the IND submission and

elearance were key milestons targets cutlined in the company’s IPO .

- Prospectus in December 2004, end werp aoc:;mpllshed over 6 rnonths

I_ ., Further posrhve :esults from cmcai and pre-gnmcal trfals. - - shead of schedula, e “is
e . Grantjog of & key patent in the US; and . Ve
" » Sharshoider epproval for additional Investmenl in Mesuuasi s US baseql‘

K ResunsofmePhase2 malmlt beusedtosupponapwotal Pnasaadmm!
.."triaf of Mesohlast's patentsd technofogy for spinal fusion, eiming to elminate - -
- the need for autograft (or patient’s own hip bone graft), reduce compdlications -

'- slstaloonmnyAngiobiaslS e ,I ST TS
Y, e L LT :assouahedmmaxzshﬂglrwmregﬂnms Bndlmprovafwooqutoomas

Z‘g}ﬁ;‘,gﬁff f E_)_A.C_.I.e_'arance mean to th? .'. "on commerciglising the same, plaﬂorm sterm cef tachmlogy forthe -

e - treatment of cardiovascular diseases. T L Tl T
* In order to commercialise our products in the wodda ugesi health cars

X L the Uriled States, we must FOA cf for clinical tna!s Anglobiasl has completed final pra-iND maeimgs walh the FDAand
" and uitimaely, approvel 0; safety ang eficacy endpgins for product,sales, "« ~ baged on thess as well as ongoing discussions with potential strategnc

.. ... parinrs, is in final proparalions to complets its IND submission for & f:rsl
- Our FDA submisslon in November 2006 containedt detailod resuits of our . cargiovascular clinical Indicalion by the end of this quarler. in this case,

. Angioblast will sesk to ta the first company to reGeive FDA clearance AR
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